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HOWARD'S NECK

Howard's Neck plantation is located in a commanding position in
a bend of the upper James, across from the picturesque old village of Carter
ville. The plantation's residence and immediate dependencies are situated
on one of the highest points of the neck, and from them can be obtained
broad vistas of the river, its bottom lands, and the southern bank. Still
a productive farm, Howard's Neck retains most of its original lands and
ante-bellum buildings.

The focal point of the plantation « the residence - is a
gracefully proportioned Federal house similar in style to the works of Roberg
Mills, The two-story stucture is laid in fine, even-colored Flemish bond
and is covered by a shallow deck-on-hip roof which is pierced by four
interior end chimneys and surrounded at the base by a Doric cornice with
mutules. Like the demolished Cunningham-Archer House (the Richmond resi-
dence of Howard's Neck's builder) the outside bays of the three-bay facade
are set in a very shallow recessed panels. The center bay is given emphasis
by a small, one-story academically proportioned tetrastyle Roman Doric
portico which shelters the front door. Between the first and second floor
windows on all four sides are unornamented rectangular stuccoed panels
painted white. The four-bay rear elevation of the building has been painted
gray.

The interior of the residence is as handsome and refined as
the exterior. The dining room, library, and parlor retain their original
black and white marble mantels and, like the entrance hall, are crowned by
Regency-type plaster cornices. The stair hall, located directly behind the
entrance hall, contains a graceful spiral stair set against a curved end
wall, The architectural decoration of the second floor is more simple than
that on the first but is ne less sophisticated.

The broad, sloping yard in front of the house is informally
planted with boxwood and large shade trees. The appreach to the house
from the river is through iron gates located halfway down the hill, onto an
axial avenue lined with c¢crepe myrtles. Farther up the hill this avenue
divides into an elliptical drive that encompasses most of the front yard.
Immediatedly behind the residence is a one-story frame house said to be the
original farm dwelling dating from colenial times. The single-pile struc-
ture is covered by a gable roof and has two exterior end chimneys laid in
Flemish bond with glazed headers. To the west of the '"old" dwelling is a
twentieth century frame house built as a club house for hunting parties
during the Hobson ownership. In a corresponding position on the eastern
side is the early-nineteenth century brick kitchen. The interior of the
kitchen is in a remarkable state of preservation. Near the kitchen are twg
frame smokehouses and a frame tool house. Immediately to the east of the
main residence is an old boxwood gavrden and an orangery dating the same
period as the residence. Beyond the boxwood garden are extensive
vegetable gardens.

In the southwest corner of the front yard are preserved two
early carriage houses and a harness house. Down a steep hill to the west
of these buildings are three log slave quarters aligned along a plantation
street. The quarters were originally all one-story, but two of them have
been raised to two stories and all have been covered over with c¢lapboards.
To the south of the quarters is an early-nineteenth century, one-and-one-
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The first owner of the Howard's Neck property was Charles

Fleming of New Kent County, who patented 732 acres of land along the upper
James in June 1714, Upon Fleming's death in 1720 the tract was conveyed
to Stephen Hughes, who in 1738 sold it to Richard Randolph. In 1741 .the |

property, which was then known as Fleming's Park, was aquired by Allen
Howard, It was Howard who changed the name of the plantation to Howard's
Neck, the name it has retained to the present. Although its construction
date is uncertain,it seems probable that the one-story eighteenth century
dwelling house on the property was built during Howard's ownership.

It has not been established how long the Howard family
retained title to the property, but it is known that in 1807 Littleton
Waller Tazewell of Norfolk was in possession of Howard's Neck and that year
sold it to Edward Cunmingham. Cunningham was born in Ireland, and in 1811
moved from Petersburg to Richmond where he scon became an important indus-
trialist and businessman. He owned flour mills and a cotton manufactury,
and was one of the founders of the Tredegar Rolling Mills. It has been a
tradition that the now demolished beautiful town house that Cunningham
built on the corner of North Sixth and Franklin Streets in Richmond (which
later came to be called the Cunningham-Archer House) was designed by Robert
Mills. It is also a tradition that when Cunningham decided to sell his
Richmond house in 1825 and move permanently to his Goochland plantation, he
built his country house according to plans provided by Mills. Whether or
not Mills's services were ever formally engaged to design either of these
two houses, the architectural parallels between them are quite evident and
they both bear stylistic resemblance to documented works of Robert Mills.

Edward Cunningham died in 1836 and was buried at Howard's
Neck. His son John, one of the most outstanding physicians in Virginia at
the time, inherited the plantation, but financial reverses forced him to
sell it in 1844 to Richard C. Haden. In 1850 Haden sold Howard's Neck to
John C. Hobson. Howard's Neck remained in the Hobson Family until 1945,
and during its ownership by Saunders Hobson in the 1920's and '30's, and
later by his sister, Maria Octavia Hobson, it became noted for its hospi-
tality and fine gardens. Floowing Maria Octavia Hobson's death the pro-
perty was conveyed to J. Boyer Chandler of Michigan, who in 1951 sold it to
its present owner,

The gracefully proportioned house that Edward Cunningham
built at Howard's Neck is an outstanding example of the later, or classical
revival phase of Federal period architecture. Its significance is increaspd
by its kinship to Richmond architecture of the period. Since most of the
parallel Richmond examples have been destroyed, the house provides some of
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDRINATES

LATITUDE AND LONG!TUDE COQORDINATES

DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY o DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
R OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES
CORNER LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
Degrees Minutes Seconds |Degrees Minutes Ssconda Degreas Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
nw | 37° 41 13+ | 78 ° 06 ' 30 - ° - - ° ' -
NE 37° 41 13 | 78 ° 04 * 30 "
SE 37° 40 15" | 78 ° 04 ' 30 "
S 370 40+ 15- 78 = Q6 + 30 -
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY: 1,[;‘50 acres.
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STATE: CoDE COUNTY CoDE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: coDE
STATE: CODE | COUNTY: CODE
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7.
half-story manager's house with shed dormers and exterior end chimneys. Most

of the sheds and barns are located to the northeast of the main residence,
although an early and quite sizable tobacco barn stands at the bottom of the
long slope in front of the residence. Nearly all of the buildings on the
plantation are covered with slates obtained from the nearby Buckingham slate
quarries. Two graveyards, including that of the Cunningham family, are also
located on the grounds.

8.

the best tangible illustration of an important phase in Virginia's architecturgl
development. ,“The plantation itself contains one of the most complete sets of
ante-bellum outbuildings in the Commonwealth. The three log slave quarters

on their plantation street are a special rarity. The whole complex, includ-
ing gardens and grounds offers & particularly keen insight into plantation life
of Virginia's piedmont region.
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U.5.G.5. 15' quadrangle{scale:1:62500)
Lakeside Village, Va. 1960
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